

                    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 


 


                              15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012 (425) 745-1891 


  
 


  


 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor • Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem • Mark Bond 


Mike Todd • Vince Cavaleri • John Steckler • Stephanie Vignal 
   


 


Regular meetings of the Mill Creek City Council shall be held on the first, second and fourth Tuesdays of 
each month commencing at 6:00 p.m. in the Mill Creek Council Chambers located at 15728 Main Street, Mill 
Creek, Washington. Your participation and interest in these meetings are encouraged and very much 
appreciated. We are trying to make our public meetings accessible to all members of the public. If you 
require special accommodations, please call the office of the City Clerk at (425) 921-5725 three days prior to 
the meeting.  


 


The City Council may consider and act on any matter called to its attention at such meetings, whether or not 
specified on the agenda for said meeting. Participation by members of the audience will be allowed as set 
forth on the meeting agenda or as determined by the Mayor or the City Council.  


 


To comment on subjects listed on or not on the agenda, ask to be recognized during the Audience 
Communication portion of the agenda. Please stand at the podium and state your name and residency for 
the official record. Please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. Time limitations shall be 
at the discretion of the Mayor or City Council.  


 


Study sessions of the Mill Creek City Council may be held as part of any regular or special meeting. Study 
sessions are informal, and are typically used by the City Council to receive reports and presentations, review 
and evaluate complex matters, and/or engage in preliminary analysis of City issues or City Council business.  


   


 


Next Ordinance No. 2019-848 


Next Resolution No. 2019-578 


March 5, 2019 


City Council Meeting 


6:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 


B. Adopt-A-Ship Program with the USS Ralph Johnson 


(Joni Kirk, Director of Communications & Marketing)   
 
STUDY SESSION 
 


C. Surface Water Bond Financing Introduction   


(Peggy Lauerman, Director of Finance & Administration)    







D. Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates 


(Joni Kirk, Director of Communications & Marketing)   
 


E. Community Funding Update 


(Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager)   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 


F. City Council Meeting Minutes of November 6, 2018  
 


G. City Council Meeting Minutes of November 13, 2018  
 
REPORTS 
 


H. Mayor/Council  
 


I. City Manager 


• Council Planning Schedule  


• Council Liaison Positions   
J. Staff 


• Design Review Board Meeting Minutes of December 20, 2018 


• Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of January 17, 2019  
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


K. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda  
 
ADJOURNMENT 


Page 2 of 103







in
CITY OF


Agenda Item #
WA 5 H I N G T O N Meeting Date: March 5, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: ADOPT-A-SHIP PROGR-AMWITH THE USS RALPH JOHNSON


PROPOSED MOTION:


Ceremonially adopt the USS Ralph Johnson.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


Councilmeinbers Mark Bond and John Steckler accompanied Special Events Manager Jon


Rainer and Police Department personnel on a tour of the USS Ralph Johnson on February 6,
2019. An opportunity has arisen to partner with Naval Station Everett in support ofour veterans.


Council requested that this matter be brought back for consideration during the March 5, 2019
meeting.


The U.S. Navy provides an Adopt—A-Shipprogram to enhance public outreach and improve
relations. The purpose of adopting a ship is to build better ties between the troops assigned to the


ship, its home port base and the local community.


The newly commissioned Arleigh Burke-class guided—missiledestroyer stationed at Naval
Station Everett is the USS Ralph Johnson (DDG—l14). The USS Ralph Johnson is the first
warship named for Medal of Honor recipient Marine Pfc. Ralph Henry Johnson. Pfc. Johnson
was posthumously awarded the Medal of Honor for his heroic actions during the Vietnam War;
he used his body to shield two fellow Marines from a grenade, absorbing the blast and dying
instantly in March 1968.


Though discussions with Naval Station Everett regarding support for the City’s Memorial Day
and Veterans Day parades, Mill Creek Special Events Manager Jon Ramer was connected to the
commanding officer of Naval Station Everett, Commander Casey Mahon. Commander Mahon
has expressed interest in Mill Creek adopting his ship.


There is no cost to the City to participate in the Adopt—A-Shipprogram; it’s a ceremonial
function and support. The biggest impact is some staff time (fewer than 20 hours per year) and
effort to coordinate between the ship and the City to invite the ship crew to events like the Mill
Creek Festival, Summer Evening Concerts, parades, and other events. Additionally, City would
be expected to solicit volunteers willing to host a single sailor for Thanksgiving and Christmas
dinner so they are not left alone over the holidays.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Adopt-A-Ship Program with the USS Ralph Johnson (Joni Kirk, Director of ... Page 3 of 103







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Subject to interest by the City Council, adopt the proposed motion.


ATTACHMENTS:
0 N/A


obert S. Stowe
Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Adopt-A-Ship Program with the USS Ralph Johnson (Joni Kirk, Director of ... Page 4 of 103







v 1
CITY or /4;,/,_


Agenda Item #L
W A S H I N G T 0 N Meeting Date: March 5, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: STUDY SESSION: BOND FINANCING FOR THE SURFACE
WATER AGING INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM


PROPOSED MOTION:


None at this time — For discussion purposes only.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


The City has engaged D.A. Davidson to serve as the underwriter for the City of Mill Creek on its
proposed offering and issuance of bonds to fund the surface water program identi?ed in the
2019-2024 Capital Improvement Plan. Jim Nelson, Sr. Vice President and a Mill Creek resident,
will provide an overview of the ?nancing process as well as other pertinent information related
to the issuance of bonds.


The adopted 2019-2024 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) includes a Surface Water Aging
Infrastructure Program estimated at $4,687,500 over the six year plan duration. The adopted CIP
addresses all of the F graded pipe failures and ?ve of the C graded failure “project bundles’ for
pipes greater than 18 inches in diameter. Larger pipes (diameter of 18 inches or greater)
represent approximately fourteen percent of the City’s total surface water pipe system.


In order to accomplish the projects as outlined in the CIP, FCS Group proposed several alternatives
to rates along with the assumption of debt. The Council established and approved rates of $150.00


in 2019, $175.00 in 2020, and $200.00 in 2021 per Equivalent Service Unit (ESU) commencing
as of January 1, 2019, said rate to increase at 3% per year thereafter through December 31, 2026.
In conjunction with the adopted rates, additional debt totaling $2,800.000 is necessary to fund the
projects identified in the CIP.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


N/A


ATTACHMENTS:


N/A


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Surface Water Bond Financing Introduction (Peggy Lauerman, Director of F... Page 5 of 103







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2


vs S. Stowe
nterim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Surface Water Bond Financing Introduction (Peggy Lauerman, Director of F... Page 6 of 103







\


CITY OF Ag
m


Agenda Item fix
WA 5 H I N G T O N Meeting Date: March 5, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: MILL CREEK SPORTS PARK CONCESSION STAND
RENTAL RATES


PROPOSED. MOTION:


None at this time — For discussion purposes only


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


As part of the Council discussion on December 1l, 2018, about Mill Creek Sports Park use rates,
the Council requested a future discussion about Mill Creek Sports Park concession stand rates.


The discussion will provide staff with direction as it prepares agreements for the 2019 season of
Mill Creek Little League.


The Mill Creek Sports Park Schedule and Fee Policy, CCP 03-O02, was established in 2004.
Under the initial policy, concession stand fees were assessed at 20% of each calendar month’s
gross receipts. A monthly utility rate was set at $35.


Following a couple seasons with the initial concession stand policy, staff noted difficulties in
determining concession stand gross monthly revenues and recommended that Council approve a
monthly or hourly Flat Rate rental of the Concession Stand. Council amended the policy
effective September 26, 2006. The ?at rate was changed to 15% of the total gross monthly
revenues provided to the City from the prior year for seasonal users. The policy was again
amended under CCP 10-001 with an effective date of January 1, 2011; this policy change
implemented a $50 monthly utility charge.


CCP 10-001, Section 7, governs the concession stand, as follows:


7.1 Groups or individuals may rent the concession stand on a monthly basis
subject to availability. A Use Agreement form must be completed and
submitted to the City at least two weeks prior to the date of use. A
complete list of rules and regulations for use of the concession stand are


available at City Hall.


7.2 To compensate for use of the concession stand for one month or longer,
the user group will pay a minimum of fifteen percent of gross receipts to


the City of Mill Creek each calendar month. Payment may be negotiated
by the City Manager to be received as a flat rate during the term of the


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 7 of 103







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2


7.3


7.4


7.5


7.6


agreement and may be adjusted to a percentage of the gross at the end of
the concession rental. Payment shall be received byitheCity for each month
the Concessionaire operates the Concession Stand and within ?fteen days of
the Concessionaire receiving an invoice. A late charge of 10 percent of the
sum due and owing each month shall be assessed by the City and shall be
immediately due and payable by the Concessionaire if the fees are not received
in full and when due.


The term "gross receipts" means the value accruing from the sale of goods
without any deduction for costs of products sold, material used, labor, or
other expenses. It excludes monies collected as Washington State Sales
Taxes. All payments shall be made to the following:


Attn: Finance
Department City of Mill
Creek
15728 Main Street
Mill Creek, Washington 98012


A monthly utility fee of $50.00 will be charged to the user.


A written statement of daily gross receipts on forms provided by the City
shall accompany each payment. The user group shall submit any other
information requested by the City for evaluation and monitoring purposes;
and shall, at all times, keep records available for audit by an authorized
representative of the City of Mill Creek.


No user will subcontractoutside vendors to allow sales of merchandise
without prior approval from the City.


No user shall make modi?cations to the Concession Stand without prior
approval from the City.


History of Concession Stand Fees .


Mill Creek Little League (MCLL) began using Freedom Field and the Concession Stand in
March 2004. Following is a breakout of the fees they have been charged over the years based on
sales.


Month! Fee
2004 $772.89


2005 $550 00 $35
2006 $760:5l $35
2007 $950.00 $35
2008 $950 00 $50
2009 $950 00 $50
2010 $1100.00 $50


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 8 of 103







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 3


$1250.00
$1350.00
$1350.00
$1200.00


$875.00
$875.00


$1435.00
$900.00


$1 016.23


2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018


Avera ; e Rate


$50
$50
$50
$50
$50
$50
$50
$50


Use of the Concession Stand and Other Bene?ts
The use agreement is generally for ?ve months of the year, sparmingMarch 1 through July 31.
However, Little League storesitems onsite year-round and pays a $50 monthly rate to store items
for the off season. The Mill Creek Little League stores a large number of items in the concession
stand, which impacts the ability of others to adequately use the space. Because of this, access to
the concession stand (including use of the PA system, which is accessed through the building)
has been limited to this sole user group, which is classi?ed as a second priority group.


As an ongoing bene?t of this user relationship, the group also receivesmeeting room space for
free at the City for monthly meetings, the purpose of whichranges from baseball and softball
drafts, to safety meetings and food handlers permit classes.


Practices of Other Jurisdictions
Staff researched other concession stand use fees in neighboringjurisdictions (Arlington, Bothell,
Everett, Kirkland, Lynnwood, Redmond, Seattle, and SnohomishCounty) as well as other Park
and Recreation departments around the country. Practices largely vary and include:


0 Flat fee by four-hour blocks of time
A


0 Flat fees by month
0 Flat fees for season, with varying amounts depending on the park size, amount of activity


and amenities provided
0 Flat fees of $25 to $50 per day used
0 Percentage of gross sales (ranging from 5% to 15%)
0 Percentage of salesup to a revenue threshold,then a reduced percentage for additional


revenue A


0 Varying rates depending on the month, with higher use rates during the prime use season
(June through August)


Regarding utilities, there generally are two approaches:
0 A ?at utility fee ’


0 The concessionaire pays actual utility and service costs


Based on the varying approaches in the industry and the consistency in policy that the City has
followed for the last 13 years regarding rate determination, it is staffs recommendation to
maintain the same approach moving forward.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 9 of 103







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 4


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


The City Manager recommends maintaining the existing terms for use of the concession stand,
including a monthly use fee based on 15% of gross sales, a monthly utility fee of$50, and a $50
monthly storage fee during the off season for items stored at the facility outside of the use period.


ATTACHMENTS:


0 CCP O3-002 Original City Policy for Scheduled Use of Mill Creek Sports Park
0 CCP 10-001 Current Policy for Scheduled Use of Mill Creek Sports Park
0 2018 Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Agreement


obert S. Stowe
Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 10 of 103







CITY OF MILL CREEK POLICY
,


FOR
SCHEDULED USE OF MILL CREEK SPORTS PARK


City Policy No.: ' CCP 03-002


Effective: July 27, 2004


Amended: September 26, 2006


PURPOSE


Establish schedulingpriorities.
Outlinefacility-schedulingpolicies.
Establish fees for use of the ?elds
Establishrules and regulationsregardinguse.
Assure equitabledistributionandmaximumuse of the facilitiesby the public.
Manage the limitednumberof City sports ?elds. '


.°‘."':"5-"’!°!“


The City of Mill Creek has park ?elds that are availablefor reservationto a wide range of users.
Priority will be given to Mill Creek user groups. However, the City reserves the right to make
the facilities open to a wide range of users and shallmake ?nal decisionsin regard to scheduling.
In order to be consistent in granting use of these park ?elds, identifying priority user groups,
specifyingdeposit and fee schedules,andestablishingadministrativerules, the following policy
applies. ‘


1. PRIORITY USERS:


First Priority Group:
City of Mill Creek sponsoredprograms and events.


Second Priority Group:
Use will be granted to leagues, organizations,clubs and groups based in Mill Creek or
with 51% or more of the participantsresiding withinthe city limits of Mill Creek.
Priority will be given to youth groups, then to adult groupsl


* Everett SchoolDistrictwillbe given priorityafter secondpriorityuser groups
have been scheduled.


Third Priority Group:
Use will be granted to leagues, organizations,clubs and groups with participantsbeing
composed of less than 51% City of Mill Creekresidents. Priority willbe given to youth
groups, then to adult groups.


‘


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 11 of 103







1.1 For this policy a league, organization,or club is de?ned as having 8 or more teams
playingin a round-robinor competitiveformat.


2. FIELDS AVAILABLE FOR SCHEDULING:


FreedomField - Little League/Softball
FreedomField - Modi?ed Soccer


3. SCHEDULING POLICIES:


The City of Mill Creek will have preferentialuse of all parks and recreation?elds and
facilities for camps, classes, and other specialevents.
Facilitiesare scheduledfor threeperiodseachyear:


Spring& Summer: March,April,May, June, and July
Fall: August, September, October, andNovember
Winter: December, January, and February


Field Reservationswillbeacceptedonly in person at Mill Creek City Hall.


,


Block Time Users: Leagues, organizationsor clubsmay apply for blocks of time for ongoing
league sanctionedevents (practicesand games)and/ortournaments lastingmore than one
day.


0 Spring/SunmierApplications:(For use March 1 through July 31)
League applicationforms must be ?led at CityHall betweenJanuary 1 - 30)
To be consideredfor BlockTime user application.


0 Fall Application:(For.use August 1 through November30)
League applicationforms must be ?led at City Hall betweenJune 1 - 30)
To be consideredfor BlockTime user application.


0 WinterApplications: (For use December1 through February 28/29)
. League applicationfonns must be ?led at City Hall between October 1 — 31
To be consideredfor BlockTime user application.


3.1 Regular league applications(practices& games) for Block Time Users (BTU) must be
submittedto the City within the above listeddates.


3.2 Tournament applicationsfor Block Time Users (BTU) must be submitted30 days prior to


the start of play. A tournament bracketmust be submitted10 days prior to the event.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 12 of 103







‘ 4 ’- '7 en-—'r-6 .-.... .u‘x'4-&¢'.atu:.;-.v_4 ..p


3.3 Individual teams may reserve ?eld space according to priority categoriesand will be
considered on a ?rst come, ?rst servedbasis and after Block Time is allocated.
Applicationmust be submittedthreedays prior to scheduled?eld use.


3.4 City staff shall have discretionto resolve schedulingcon?icts based upon historicaluse,
community interest,or other factors.


3.5 User groups requesting‘the residency schedulingpriorityor resident fees may be required
to submit a roster showingresidency at the time of a ?eld request.


3.6 Field customer is responsiblefor assuring all litterrelatedto their use is pickedup and the
site is left in the conditionit was found. Site includes: Field,Dugouts, Bleachers,
Parking Lot, ConcessionStandArea, andBathrooms.


3.7Block Time Users will providethe City, prior to start date, a list of league representatives,
and or directorsthat are responsiblefor ?eld use. List to includephone numbersand
email addresses if available.


. FEES:


4.1 Payment must be made in advance for approved?eld use. Fees are to be paid to the
City of Mill Creek.
0 Block Time Users: Payment must be made for approved?eld timeprior to ?rst date


' of scheduleduse. Lights willbe billedmonthly according to use.
0 Individual Teams/Users: All fees are due three days prior to scheduled?eld use and


at time of application.


4.2 A $20.00 administrativefee willbe appliedto approvedBlockTimeUser applicationsfor


any extensiveblock time applicationrevisionrequests. Extensiverevisionsare those that
take more than 15minutesto adjust. ~


4.3 If it is necessary for the City to repairdamagesor clean the premises(i.e. ?eld, dugouts,


bleachers, or concessionsstandduring the users rental, the customer will incurthe
maintenance/repaircosts at $40.00 an hour witha one-hour


4.4 For large events/toumaments the City may be able to provide staf?ng and/or equipment.
Any additionalequipment,materialsor staffingrequestedby applicant,and providedby


the City, shall be at the expenseof the applicant.Users must also completea Special


Events Permit for eachTournament (Fee: $50).


...,2,»


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 13 of 103







\-$-.;.-_..I,.:;é


*"‘"".‘.'.‘..';-’.‘..'.‘.' v v?pmm “-..-.'.-.»u.-.:--.>_--.-:.~«:'.~:~.--~: —-- ~- ---- .v».~~- -~- .--...—...«
.._... - .... ~.~:.-.—. _- .:.-.-2.’ ~.--~.:.-»~;~'.- L-:»:'A?:»:-.'-~:.-.»;-.’.. .* 2- 32.2‘-L:-;: " ' ""’ “"


:2


-,5,-3: 1-.—_«_!_J_..l.‘.“--. .—‘<\.l:-‘J.a., ..., ..a.v.x... ._ ,_ 44- ._-.-..r. ,.
~ v 4 .'.‘.i. ....u.". " ‘- V‘ . .'.'.°_‘.‘a‘ z.'.‘.'.“.’.':.-..-. . ..~. l »‘:.Q‘n";


.


..-._._.j.:.


...


.g-——..-.—...—.


FEE SCHEDULE:


Second Priority:


*Everett SchoolDistrict - In conjunctionwith the interlocalagreement betweenEverettSchool
Districtand City of MillCreek,therewillbe no charge for Everett SchoolDistrictuse.


ResidentOutdoorAthletic Toumamentsl
F03171'0’ Camps with
(h0W‘1.VV0188)


.
» Participation Fee


Baseball/So?ballField
Modi?ed SoccerField E Adult - $35


Toumaments/
Camps with


Participation Fee


Non-ResidentOutdoorAthletic
Facility
(hourly rates)


Baseball/SoftballField
Modi?ed Soccer Field


$30


Field Lights $12 $12


5. CANCELLATIONS/REFUNDS:


5.1 An adjustment to Block Time User applicationsmust be submittedto the City at least one


week prior to the date the season/toumamentbegins in order to receive?dllcredit for
urmeededtime.


5.2 Field reservationsfor individualgroups are non-refundableexcept as stated in item 5.4.


5.3 The City reserves the right to limit the amount of play permittedonthe?elds andcancel
permits in the event of adverseweatherconditionsor ?eld maintenance. Ifthe City


closes a ?eld, every attempt will be made to reschedulesubject to an agreement with the_


1lSCl'.


5.4 The City will trackall City ?eld closures. At the end of the total ?eld use time, a refund
will be issued to the permitholder for City mandated?eld closures.


-4-


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 14 of 103







5 . .-.-...‘._._- ‘.:.~.. x ,3?» 4.-$4.3,-._, N»...-.. 3... ---a- -.... . .-.._,... .......-...... ..- ......... . ..... .. . .....,


..-z.»
- -~ . .r. *:..-- -..-1-‘-.‘~-.~'~-~* '~~-'.‘.v-V’----~ J C»... ..::.v.:-.-. ~..‘..».~.~~,-,-,~ :2 .i.‘.......-.~. .......,. . ; . - . .. .......... ..


'I
4 :3» ? ::'r£§t-»s§»....- .' . I.-1,1,:-. ‘. " . .'§;.,.,.‘,_.;;:'_‘. , ;; -.‘.3.:.'.-.' .~: ' ' ..‘.".-.‘ ~ ‘:4 .‘., '.'..‘.‘-i'.:.‘:~’.~,:‘..'‘.‘ '. -.v','r.<v.7 .'.'.'.‘P...‘3a'a:‘2';‘.r':.".:'.~.'.r..-s--’.‘~rv“H ‘ - I.'.‘.r;r2‘..‘:..t.:3.r.‘;'.:,:.1.':r;.


6. INSURANCE:


6.1 Field users shallprovide a Certi?cateof Insuranceto the Cityprior to use except as


providedin paragraph6.4. Thisrequirementis satis?ed by providingthe City with a copy


of the customer’sCerti?cateof Insurance namingthe City of Mill Creekas an additional
insuredand a copy of the endorsementto this insurancepolicy, meeting the requirements
in paragraph 6.2.


'


6.2 Liability Insurance Requirements:
The user shallprovideevidenceof commercialgeneral liability insuranceof one million
dollars ($1,000,000.00) combined,single limitper occurrence. Such insuranceshallbe


primary over any coverage held by the City and shall name the City as an additional
insured.Prior to usage of the facility, the user shall submita copy of the insurancepolicy


declarationpage to the City as evidenceof acceptableinsurancecoverage.


The following must be on the Certi?cateof Insurance:
I Locationof activitiesmust show on certi?cate (For example:City of Mill


Creek)
I Type of activitiesmust show on certi?cate (For example:Softball,


Baseball, and Soccer)
I Separate EndorsementSheet
I Dates of coverage -


I Insurance carriermay FAX to the City of Mill Creekat (425) 745-9650.


6.3 Failure to provideacceptableinsurancecoverage prior to the ?rst dayof ?eld use will
result in loss of permissionto use the ?elds.


6.4 The City Manager may, at his/her discretion,waive the insurancerequirementsfor


individualsor groups who use the ?eld on a limited, short-termbasis (e.g., family picnics,
or non-league youth teams). Ifthe insurancerequirementis waived,a Hold Harmless


agreement will be required.


7. CONCESSION STAND:


7.1 Groups or individualsmayrent the concessionstand on a monthly basis subject to


availability. A Use Agreement fonn must be completedand submittedto the City at least


two weeksprior to the date of use. A complete list of rules and regulationsfor use of the


concessionstand are availableat City Hall.


7.2 To compensate for use of the concessionstand for one month or longer, the user group


will pay a minimumof ?fteen percent of gross receipts to the City of Mill Creekeach
calendarmonth. Payment may be negotiatedby the CityManager to be receivedas a ?at


rate during the term of the agreement and may be adjusted to a percentage of the gross at


the end of the concessionrental. Payment shallbe receivedby the City for each month the


-5-


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 15 of 103







Concessionaire operates the ConcessionStand and within ?fteen days of the
Concessionairereceiving an invoice. A late charge of 10 percent of the sum due and
owing each month shall be assessedby the City and shall be immediatelydue andpayable
by the Concessionaireif the fees are not receivedin full and when due.


The term “gross receipts”means the value accruing from the sale of goods without
any deductionfor costs of productssold,materialused, labor, or other expenses. It
excludesmonies collectedas Washington State SalesTaxes. All payments shallbe
made to the following:


Attn: FinanceDepartment
City of Mill Creek
15728Main Street
Mill Creek, Washington 98012


7.3 A monthly utility fee of $35.00 will be charged to the user.


7.4 A writtenstatement of daily gross receiptson formsprovidedby the City shall
accompany eachpayment. The user group shall submitany other informationrequested
by the City for evaluationand monitoring purposes; and shall, at all times, keep records
available for auditby an authorizedrepresentativeof the City of Mill Creek.


7.5 No user will subcontractoutsidevendors to allow sales of merchandisewithout prior
approval?om the City.


7.6 No user shall make modi?cations to the ConcessionStand without prior approval from
the City.


RULES AND REGULATIONS:


Failure to complywith rules and regulations may result in cancellationof use, forfeitureof


fees, and/or suspensionof tearn/league from usingthe park.


8.1 Alcoholicbeverages are prohibited.


8.2 Beverages, food of any kind (including seeds and gum) are prohibitedon the arti?cial turf
?eld and dugouts. Plain water is permitted.


8.3 Pets are prohibitedon the arti?cial turf ?eld andthe dugouts.


8.4 Smoking and Tobacco use are prohibited.


8.5 Metalcleats or spikesare prohibited.
_ 5 -


...... -4,)“ .. . .- -... .........,....... . . . . .. ..
‘- ‘-' ~~ “.f'9?.'2#>‘°—.~o "_,!~o.-—~. ‘...~ -I 2 ->1‘.-:.‘. '4--.1-n .~.'.'.“.'. .-3:4-_(‘r'.~‘."_‘:$.'-.‘.‘.' ’.. -.1»-


. . . ..-.....
r .4. c.-.<.' .‘.':'§.:-t»"«..'v;.~‘..‘~..‘~.:..<;'.‘:I... .t:=.~':.‘.‘-'2»- !.’.'-.:-.-..«-..:.-..::.~'.u . . ..~.'..~‘ ‘ 5:. .‘ .- l:‘:~.o;*;‘'.‘’''v' "


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 16 of 103







3, ,tJxa"1u;.;.n...--J .2 .'.:.s -.—.o v
}- .‘ ._....._...,.,' .‘z.....,..V__. p. ... .


»‘ 1.} ~ ....-.,.c'..';:.'.....u-' ’!-::L'- G‘.=;$:-wk:=:'-..;:~;<.*.=24>:ow .- - . .o:,..-,5; -r.-Lb.-~ ».a«......,.., ..r .....~.-.


8.6 League Teams may not use ball ?elds unless pre-scheduled.


8.7 Games and or practicesshall not start before 8:00 a.m. and all activity shall conclude by
10:00p.m. NO EXCEPTIONS. No teams willbe allowedin the park prior to 8:00 a.m.


8.8 Permitteemust designatea ResponsibleParty for all ?eld rentals. Thisperson is directly
responsiblefor informingteam coaches,representatives,andparticipantsof the Mill
Creek Sports Park policy and for ensuringpayment of all fees assessedfor ?eld rentals
andusage.


8.9 Use of peripheralitems or equipmentsuch as scoreboardcontrols or P.A. systems must


be requestedin advance and authorizedindividualsidenti?edin the request. Permission
to use or operate these itemsmust be pre-approvedand authorizedby City sta?i


8.10 The City of Mill Creek reserves the right to cancelany event or to close the park. Closure
of the parkmay be the result of an emergency,severe weather,vandalism,maintenance,
adverseplayingconditionsor damage that could cause safety concerns.


8.11 Baseballlso?ball Users are responsiblefor ensuring that individualteams clean up their
respectivedugouts after each practice/gameand rake or sweep the dirt from the arti?cial
turf back on to the moundafter each game. The mound must be covered after the last
scheduledpracticelgame of eachday. '


SoccerUsers are responsiblefor ensuring that individualteams clean up the ?eld after
eachpractice/game.


Litter Control—Usergroups willbe held responsiblefor litter le? after practices,games
and tournaments. Maintenancestaff willmonitorand report abusesof this policyto the
RecreationSupervisor. Seriousor repeatedoffensesby facilityusers may result in loss of
?eld privileges. Maintenanceor cleaning feeswill be assessedto the facility user at


$40.00 per hour if deemednecessary by the City.


8.12


8.13 Field Lights will be turnedoff at 10:00p.m. (unless an earliertimehas been agreed upon
byCity and user) All activities,including cleanup,must be completedby this time.
Please schedule games and practicesaccordingly.


8.14 The City ofMi1l Creek is not responsiblefor any personal property loss, damage to


vehicles, etc.


8.15 Users who ignore the?eldclosure signs willbe in violationof MCMC l2.12.l50
Ordinance2003-569 and subject to penalties.


;*.‘.~.":.'_ ‘. .--1..-r. :.-..-,.-.-r.‘.~- rv ‘z,-1». .~f_.—.v\" 7-... .1:-. ». ~'.- ,_ |,'.f.*,'.':',‘-‘:.r,‘.’,,‘.-If -.3-,-_~,.-;x-_- -— -,- r- ,- —,~.-v, » w


' -.3‘ £53.‘, ',"."..'.:';. .: v:'§.“~"....‘;.., . 413.515‘ ..'-.'-.2". -1...l,- ..... -. . 3‘: - -. - ;~».v.-.'_..~_. .. .—.. .<,x-,


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 17 of 103







v ,- or-~ .r.'..ra';P.:::;'z -~ .a-‘ .' -'...s,—.~.J.-»-A ~ I -w,--, .... .._.. ...- ..,~-_..,-.;,.,.._..-...,....-- O.?“4-#4‘. -..-I ».
...,... ....... . . ,. *.:.T'.‘.*.::.'...‘—7...§.f:¥..u':1-'.':='-:..*.:;‘.-'4‘: i‘1~¥'.%K"1t€-3.‘-a.":.‘..‘;'.‘:..:...’1.'..?;'.:..‘.;.-2‘: '-.' ..|}'.‘.‘2Z-:.’:::Tr;:.:.. ;:.... .!.~ .~.':s2;—.‘.<.~'.:‘.'».';..'...;.'......!~,~-.a-.-.~.---'-'mu : ; .z. -.»...... .'.-.1....~i -.-. ‘.:‘.'..:.‘L°.'.-.-.e::‘.'.-..- -,'-.“.-'.'.-.-.11.-Lu:-.-.;:L-. ...: .xt.T&%&'A3‘.&.......r“"


t


8.16.These rules andregulationsare in compliancewith OrdinanceNo. 2003-569as passedby
the Mill Creek City Councilon May 13, 2003.


Adopted this 26th day of September 2006 by a vote of 6 for, 0 against, and __O
abstaining.


‘


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


APPROVED AS TO FORM:_
OFFICE OF THE CITYATTORNEY
SHORT CRESSMAN& BURGESS


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 18 of 103







CITY OF MILL CREEK POLICY
FOR


SCHEDULED USE OF MILL CREEK SPORTS PARK


City Policy No.: CCP 10-001


Effective: January 1, 2011


Amended: October 26, 2010


PURPOSE


Establishschedulingpriorities.
Outlinefacility-schedulingpolicies.
Establishfees for use of the ?elds
Establishrulesand regulationsregardinguse.
Assure equitabledistributionand maximum use of the facilities by the public.
Manage the limited number of City sports ?elds.


9‘5":"E-'°!°!“


The City of Mill Creek has park ?elds that are availablefor reservation to a wide range of users.
Priority will be given to Mill Creek user groups. However, the City reserves the right to make
the facilities open to a wide range of users and shall make ?nal decisions in regard to scheduling.
In order to be consistentin granting use of these park ?elds, identifyingpriority user groups,
specifyingdeposit and fee schedules, and establishingadministrativerules, the following policy
applies.


1. PRIORITY USERS:
First Priority Group:


City of Mill Creek sponsored programs and events.


Second Priority Group:
Use will be granted to leagues, organizations,clubs and groups based in Mill Creek or
with 51% or more of the participantsresiding within the city limits of Mill Creek".
Priority will be given to youth griiups, then to adult groups.


* Everett School District will be given priority after second priority user groups
have been scheduled.


Third Priority Group:
Use will be granted to leagues, organizations,clubs and groups with participantsbeing
composed of less than 51% City of Mill Creek residents. Priority will be given to youth
groups, then to adult groups. '


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 19 of 103







1.1 For this policy a league, organization,or club is de?ned as having 8 or more teams


playing in a round-robin or competitiveformat.


2. FIELDS AVAILABLE FOR SCHEDULING:


Freedom Field - Little League/Softball
Freedom Field - Modi?ed Soccer


3. SCHEDULING POLICIES:


The City of Mill Creek will have preferentialuse of all parks and recreation ?elds and
facilities for camps, classes, and other special events.
Facilities are scheduled for three periods each year:


Spring & Surmner: March, April, May, June, and July
Fall: August, September, October, and November
Winter: December, January, and February


Field Reservationswill be accepted in person at Mill Creek City Hall or via email for
established User Groups.


Block TimeUsers: Leagues, organizationsor clubs may apply for blocks of time for ongoing
league sanctioned events (practices and games) and/or tournaments lasting more than one
day.


0 Spring/SummerApplications: (For use March 1 through July 31)
League applicationfonns must be ?led at City Hall between January 1 — 30)
To be considered for Block Time User application.


0 Fall Application: (For use August 1 through November:30)
League applicationforms must be ?led at City Hall between June 1 - 30)
To be considered for Block Time User application.


0 Winter Applications: (For use December 1 through February 28/29)
League applicationforms must be ?led at City Hall between October 1 — 31
To be considered for Block Time User application.


3.1 Regular league applications(practices & games) for Block Time Users must be submitted
to the City within the above listed dates.


3.2 Tournament applications for Block Time Users must be submitted 30 days prior to the
start of play. A tournament bracket must be submitted 10 days prior to the event.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 20 of 103







3.3 Individual teams may reserve ?eld spaceaccordingto priority categories and will be
consideredon a ?rst come, ?rst servedbasis and after Block Time is allocated.
Applicationmust be submittedthree days prior to scheduled?eld use.


3.4 City staff shall have discretion to resolve scheduling con?icts basedupon historical use,
community interest,or other factors.


3.5 User groups requesting the residency schedulingpriority or resident fees may be required
to submit a roster showing residency at the time of a ?eld request.


3 .6 Field customer is responsible for assuring all litter related to their use is picked up and the
site is left in the condition it was found. Site includes: Field, Dugouts, Bleachers,
ParkingLot, ConcessionStand Area, and Bathrooms.


3.7 Block Time Users will provide the City, prior to start date, a list of league representatives,
and or directors that are responsiblefor ?eld use. List to include phone numbers and


4 emailaddresses if available. Block Time Users verify that their coaches, athletes and
parent/guardianhave ‘compliedwith mandated policies for the management of
concussionsand head injuries as prescribedby HB 1824 (Zachary Lystedt Law).


. FEES:


4.1 Payment must be made in advance for approved ?eld use for Individual Teams/Users.
Fees are to be paid to the City of Mill Creek.


0 Block Time Users: Payment for approved ?eld time willbe invoiced monthly and is
payable upon receipt of invoice. Lights will be billed monthly according to use.


0 Individual Teams/Users: All fees are due three days prior to scheduled ?eld use and
at time of application.


4.2 A $20.00 administrative fee will be applied to approved Block Time User applicationsfor
any extensive block time applicationrevisionrequests. Extensive revisions are those that
take more than 15 minutes to adjust.


4.3 Ifit is necessary for the City to repair damages or clean the premises (i.e. ?eld, dugouts,
bleachers, or concessions stand during the users rental, the customer will incur the
maintenance/repaircosts at $40.00 an hour with a one—hourminimum.


4.4 For large events/toumaments the City may be able to provide staf?ng and/or equipment.
Any additionalequipment,materialsor staf?ng requestedby applicant,and provided by
the City, shall be at the expense of the applicant.Users must also complete a Special
Events Permit for each Tournament.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 21 of 103







FEE SCHEDULE:


Second Priority:


*Everett School District - In conjunctionwith the interlocal agreement between Everett School
Districtand City of Mill Creek, there willbe no charge for Everett SchoolDistrict use.


Resident Outdoor Athletic Tournaments/
Facility


‘


Camps with
(’10l0‘1J’V0193) Participation Fee


Baseball/SoftballField
'


_
Youth - $24


Modi?ed Soccer Field
'


Adult - $42


Field Lights


Third Priori


Non-ResidentOutdoor Athletic Tournaments/
Facility Camps with
(h0W'lJ’M135) ’ Participation Fee


Baseball/SoftballField
i


$54 $3 6
Youth —$42


Modi?ed Soccer Field Adult - $60


Field Lights $13 . $13


5. CANCELLATIONS/REFU_NDS:


5.1 An adjustment to Block Time User applicationsmust be submitted to the City at least one
week prior to the date to be adjusted in order to receive full credit for unneeded time.


5.2 Field reservationsfor individual groups are non-re?mdable except as stated in item 5.4.


5.3 The City reserves the right to limit the amount of play permittedon the ?elds and cancel
permits in the event of adverse weather conditions or ?eld maintenance. If the City
closes a ?eld, every attempt will be made to reschedule subject to an agreement with the
1.1881‘.


5.4 The City will track all City ?eld closures. At the end of the total ?eld use time,a refund
will be issued to the permitholder for City mandated ?eld closures.


v—«u«uwm ....-. If


..........


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 22 of 103







6. INSURANCE:


6.1 Field users shall provide a Certi?cate of Insurance to the City prior to use except as
provided in paragraph 6.4. This requirementis satis?ed by providing the Citywith a copy
of the customer’s Certi?cate of Insurance naming the City of Mill Creek as an additional
insured and a copy of the endorsement to this insurancepolicy, meeting the requirements
in paragraph 6.2.


6.2 Liability Insurance Requirements: ‘


The user shall provide evidence of commercial general liability insuranceof two million
. dollars ($2,000,000.00) combined, single limitper occurrence.Such insurance shall be


primary over any coverage held by the City and shall name the City as an additional
insured. Prior to usage of the facility, the user shall submita copy of the insurancepolicy .


declarationpage to the City as evidenceof acceptable insurancecoverage.
The following must be on the Certi?cate of Insurance:


- Location of activitiesmust show on certi?cate (For example: City of Mill
Creek)


I Type of activities must show on certi?cate (For example: Softball,
Baseball, and Soccer)


' Separate Endorsement Sheet
I Dates of coverage
' Insurance carrier may FAX to the City of Mill Creek at (425) 745-9650.


6.3 Failure to provide acceptable insurance coverage prior to the ?rst day of ?eld use will
result in loss of permission to use the ?elds.


6.4 The City Manager may, at his/her discretion,waive the insurance requirementsfor
individuals or groups who use the ?eld on a limited, short-term basis (e.g., family picnics,
or non-league youth teams). If the insurance requirement is waived, a Hold Harmless
agreement will be required.


. CONCESSION STAND:


7.1 Groups or individuals may rent the concessionstand on a monthly basis subject to
availability. A Use Agreement form must be completed and submitted to the City at least
two weeks priorto the date of use. A complete list of rules and regulations for use of the
concessionstand are available at City Hall.


7.2 To compensate for use of the concessionstand for one month or longer, theuser group
will pay a minimum of ?fteen percent (15%) of gross receipts to the City of Mill Creek
each calendar month. Payment may be negotiated by the City Manager to be received as
a ?at rate during the term of the agreement and may be adjusted to a percentage of the
gross at the end of the concessionrental. Payment shall be received by the City for each


-5-


§»g *~¢+—j_.._?_u—<»§m. — .g_.—_—._._g§%¢.%.@————.?*.q—H_..”¢.1 —-?mx.~-..$,


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 23 of 103







month the Concessionaire operates the Concession Stand and within ??een days of the
Concessionaire receiving an invoice. A late charge of 10 percent of the sum due and
owing each month shall be assessed by the City and shall be immediately due and payable
by the Concessionaire if the fees are not received in full and when due.


The term “gross receipts” means the value accruing from the sale of goods without
any deduction for costs of products sold, material used, labor, or other expenses. It
excludes moniescollected as Washington State Sales Taxes. All payments shall be
made to the following:


Attn: Finance Department
City of Mill Creek
15728 Main Street
Mill Creek, Washington 98012


7.3 A monthly utility fee of $50.00 will be charged to the user.


7.4 A written statement of daily gross receipts on fonns provided by the City shall
accompany each payment. The user group shall submit any other information requested
by the City for evaluation and monitoring purposes; and shall, at all times, keep records
available for auditby an authorized representativeof the City of Mill Creek.


7.5 No user will subcontract outside vendors to allow sales of merchandisewithout prior
approval from the City.


7.6 No user shall make modi?cations to the Concession Stand withoutprior approval from
the City.


. RULES AND REGULATIONS:


Failure to comply with rules and regulations may result in cancellationof use, forfeiture of
fees, and/or suspensionof team/league from using the park.


8.1 Alcoholicbeverages are prohibited.


8.2 Beverages, food of any kind (including seeds and gum) are prohibited on the arti?cial turf
?eld and dugouts. Plain water is permitted.


8.3 Pets are prohibited on the arti?cial turf ?eld and the dugouts.


8.4 Smoking and Tobacco use are prohibited.


8.5 Metal cleats or spikes are prohibited.
_ 5 _


xw *:—.*..
%.-_._a..:._


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 24 of 103







8.6 League Teams may not use ball ?elds unless pre-scheduled.


8.7 Games and or practices shall not start before 8:00 a.m. and all activity shall conclude by
10:00 p.m. NO EXCEPTIONS. No teams will be allowed in the park prior to 8:00 a.m.-


8.8 Permitteemust designate a ResponsibleParty for all ?eld rentals. This person is directly
responsiblefor informing team coaches,representatives,and participantsof the Mill
Creek Sports Park policy and for ensuring payment of all fees assessed for ?eld rentals
and usage.


8.9 Use of peripheral items or equipmentsuch as scoreboardcontrols or P.A. systems must


8.10


8.11


8.12


8.13


8.14


8.15


be requested in advance and authorizedindividuals identified in the request. Permission
to use or operate these items must be pre-approved and authorized by City staff.


The City of Mill Creek reserves the right to cancel any event or to close the park. Closure
of the park may be the result of an emergency, severe weather, vandalism, maintenance,
adverse playing conditions or damage that could cause safety concerns.


Baseball/So?ball Users are responsible for ensuring that individual teams clean up their
respectivedugouts after each practice/game and rake or sweep the dirt from the arti?cial
turf back on to the mound after each game. Themound must be covered after the last
scheduled practicelgame of each day.
Soccer Users are responsiblefor ensuring that individual teams clean up the ?eld a?er
each practice/game.


Litter Control — User groups will be held responsiblefor litter left after practices,games
and tournaments. Maintenancestaff will monitor and report abuses of this policy to the
Recreation Supervisor. Serious or repeated offenses by facility users may result in loss of
?eld privileges. Maintenance or cleaning fees will be assessed to the facility user at
$40.00 per hour if deemed necessary by the City.


Field Lights will be turned off at 10:00p.m. (unless an earlier time has been agreed upon
by City and user) All activities, including cleanup, must be completed by this time.
Please schedule games and practices accordingly.


The City of Mill Creek is not responsible for any personal property loss, damage to


vehicles,etc.


Users who ignore the ?eld closure signs will be in violation ofMCMC l2.l2.l50
Ordinance 2003-569 and subject to penalties.


m «


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 25 of 103







OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY


8.16 These rules and regulations are in compliance with Ordinance No. 2003-569 as passed by
the Mill Creek City Councilon May 13, 2003.


'


Adoptedthis 7/(0/I-1day of 0 DFTPCLZOI0 by a vote of 9 for, Q against, and


3b3t3inin8-( Ovwm h4’|'&m4-0\ B‘01/Id’W49 (1


APPROVED:


0 %
MAYOR MIKE TODD


ATTBST/AUTHENTICATED:


mag
KELLY’M. CHELIN


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


SHORT CRESSMAN & BURGESS


G:\E)CECUTIVE\WP\POLICY\2006 schedulesports ?elds Amendment1.doc


....-...-..~.-on...-.-............-.-...~..o.-.o...«~oo¢ - ..—......
——....-.._
.—-.....-.
—............_
.—.._.....


-......~.——..~...._...._..»..................,


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 26 of 103







.-:“:-v;~".~<____
_.


--
"


MILLCREEKSPORTSPAR_KCONCESSION'


AGREEMENT
- . ThisAgreement("Agreement")is madethis23day of February,2018,andenteredinto


by and between the City of Mill Creek, 15728..MainStreet, MillCreek, Washington
(hereinafterreferredto as the "City"),andMillCreekLittleLeague (hereinafterreferredto as
the "Concessibnaire").


RECITALS


WHEREAS, the City ?nds it is in the best interestsof the citizens of the City and other
users of Mill CreekSports Park for the City to make availablea seasonalConcessionStand
locatedat MillCreekSportsPark,13903NorthCreekDrive,MillCreek,Washington; and


' .WHEREAS, the City throughits CommunicationsandMarketingDepartment,operates
or permitsthe operation-ofa seasonalConcessionStand at Mi]l'Creek Sports ("Concession
Stand") for the saleof food andbeverages; and '


WHEREAS, based on the recommendationof the‘Communicationsand Marketing
Department,it would be in the bestinterestof the citizensof the Cityand otherusers of Mill
CreekSportsParktopennit‘tlie"'ofp'erationof-theConcessionStand;and


WHEREAS, the‘City to‘enter into this Agreement wherebythe Concessionaire
will-operatethe ConcessionStand-beginningFebruary23,2018 and-throughJuly 31, 2018;and


WHEREAS,the Concéssidnairédesiresto operatethe‘Concession in accordance
withthisAgreemerittoprovide’fooé1'an'd-beverage?erviceto citizensof theCityandotherusers.


-' of MillCreek"SportsPark. v


_ AGREEMENT
NOW ‘THEREFORE,for andin considerationof the above-stated‘Recitalsand terms


andconditionsstatedbelow,‘theCity andthe Concessionaireagree as follows:


°


1: . License. The‘City-grantstheConcessionairea license to occupyanduse, for thepurpose
and imderthe conditions the ConcessionStand.


2. Pggose. The Concessionaireshalluse the ConcessionStand solely _forthe preparation
- and sale of food and beverages,and shall‘conductno other activity in or from the


Concessio'n"Sta'nd'.°' -


3. ‘ Term’of License.The licensegrantedin paragraph1 shall take effect on February 23,
2018, and expire onJuly31, 2018, provided that the licensemay be earlier
terminatedin accordancewithparagraph9. ‘ .


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 27 of 103







4. Fee, SecuriggDeposit,andUti]ity'_F_ee:''


A. _F_ee_s.As _considerationfor the-privileges extended under this Agreement, the
Concessionaireshallpay to the City a ?at monthly_rentalrate of NineHundred
Dollars ($900.00) plus a_monthly utility fee of ??y dollars($50.00) for utility
servicesprovidedby'the City at the ConcessionStand. Payment shall be
receivedby the City for eachmonththe Concessionaireoperates the Concession
Stand beginningFebruary 2018 ‘within ?fteen days of the Concessionaire
receiving an invoice. A latecharge of 10% of the sum due and owing each
monthshallbe assessedby the City and shallbe immediatelydue and payable
by the Concessionaireif the fees are not received in full when due. All
payments shallbe made to the following: '


City ofMi11'Cre'ek
15728MainStreet
MillCreek,Washington93012


B. Seeurig Deposit To secureits performance of the terms ofthis Agreement, the
Concessionairehas depositedwith the ‘Citythe sum of One ThousandDollars
($1,000.00) (‘.‘Security-Deposit”);-.The Concessionaireagreed to apply itsa


~ $1,000.00SecurityDepositfor the2005Sports Park ConcessionAgreement,
_which was receivedby the City on February 3, 2005,.towardsecuring
performanceof the terms of the 2018Agreement,The SecurityDepositwillbe
held in a separate account. The Concessionaireshall-notbe entitledto interest
on the Security Deposit. In the event the Concessionairefails to pay any fee,
causes any damage or to the ConcessionStand, or otherwisebreachesany


termof this Agreement, the City shallhavethe right toapplyall or part of the
SecurityDeposittowardthepast dueFee, to the repairof .911)’damageor injury
to the Concession Stand, or to the remedy of any other breach of this
Agreement. If all orany portion of the Security Deposit is so applied,the
Concessionaireshall,uponwrittennotice from the City, promptlyreplenish the
SecurityDepositto itsoriginalamount. The Citymay applythe entireSecurity‘
Deposittowardsbreaches,expenses, and/or:da1,nages..provided,however,that
Concessionaireshall remain liable for the, full payment of such breaches,


- expenses,and/or damages. This paragraphshallnot be construedas providing
for liquidateddamages, nor shall it be construedto...li_rnitany other rights.or
remedieswhich the Citymay have under this Agreement, at law or equity, or‘


otherwise. Any portion,of the Security Deposit that hasnot been appliedto any


_ of the items set forth in this paragaphshallbe refundedto the Concessionaire
thirty (30) days following. completion of the accounting described in this
paragraph,or carriedover to-thefollowingyear as agreeduponby bothparties.


In the eventthe Concessionairefails to payany fee when the Citymay deny
the Concessionaire.access to the ConcessionStand.until payment is receivedby
the City. . -


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 28 of 103







ConcessionGross Receipts. The Concessionaire.shallkeep recordsavailablefor audit
and shallprovidethe City withany informationrequestedfora periodof three (3) years.
The City may requireany otherinformationfor evaluationand monitoringpurposes.


' .' 2 . ._


Qperational Reguirernents. The Concessionaire shall comply with the following
requirements:


Hours of Operation. The Concessionaireshall operate the ConcessionStand_A.
only during the hours Mill-Creek Sports Park has been-reserved by the
Concessionaireunless prior written.approvalby the City is given. AccessTime
willbe as follows: Weekdays and weekends‘from 8:00 a.rn.to 10:00p.m.


§ign_. The Concessionairemay place.a sign advertising .its operation of the
ConcessionStandon the ConcessionStand. The sign shallcomplywith City
ordinancesand requirementsandshallbe pre-approvedby the City.


Business License. Prior to commencing operations,‘the ,Concessionaire shall
obtaina businesslicensefrom the City covering its operationof the Concession
Standand shallobtainallotherfederal,state, or county authorizationsor permits
necessary to itsoperations.


Taxes.The Concessionaire‘shallbe solely responsiblefor collectingandpaying
taxes .arising out of its operationof the ConcessionStand including, but not


limitedto, applicableCity, county, and state sales.taxes.


- Health.Permits. Prior to commencing operations, the Concessionaireshall
obtain all necessary SnohomishCountyDivisionof Healthpermits. The failure
to obtain and maintain in good standing such permits will result in the
terminationof thisAgreement. '


Compliance.-The Concessioi1aire’soperationof the ConcessionStand shall
comply with all applicablecodes, laws, regulations,ordinances,and orders of
any governmentalbody having j_urisdiction. Failure to comply with this
paragraphwillresultin the terminationof thisAgreement.


Menu. The Concessionaire may sell any type of food or.-beverage at the
Concession Stand; provided, however, that the. Concessionaire shall be
prohibitedfrom selling or providingany alcoholicbeverages, tobaccoproducts,
or packaged, edible seed products(e.g. Sun?ower, pumpkinseeds,etc) at the
ConcessionStand. «


Insurance. The Concessionaireshall maintain public liability insurance in the
minimum amount of $2,000,000 p_eroccurrence for loss or damage from an


accidentresulting in..death’.orbodily injury, and in the minimum amount of
$2,000,000per occurrence for loss or damage from an accidentresulting in the
destructionof ordamage to property. The Concessionaireshallname the City as


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 29 of 103







-/
O


o


/
additionalinsured=undersaidpolicyof-insurance‘andshallp1‘9Yidethe City with


' a certi?cate of coverage including endorsement-beforecommencingoperations.


Cleaning. The Concessionaireshall keep the food distributionareas of the
Concession Stand and all equipmentused the operationof the Concession
Stand in clean, orderly, and sanitary condition.All entrances, exits, stairways
and doorways shall remainclear so as to ?mction as intended. All storage,
shelving;or-othertemporary changesshallbe pre-approvedby the City building
o?icial. Concessionaireshalldisposeof garbageand pickup litter in andaround
the concessionstand daily when in operation.On or before July 31, 2018, the
Concessionaireshall remove all non-City inventory, storage, shelving,or other
temporary changes used in connection with its operationof the Concession
Stand unless non-removalis’approved by the City. The Concessionaireshall
cleanand otherwisereturn the ConcessionStand to its originalcondition,normal
wear and tear excepted.


?uipment. -Subject to obtaining any required permits or.approvals, the
Concessionaireshall-beallowed,to use its own:equipmentas it deemsnecessary


~ for the operationof the Concession-Standand shall be solely responsiblefor its
operationand maintenance. Said equipmentshall be compatiblewith existing
building, electrical,water, and sewer sources. Indoor grills are prohibited. On
or beforeJuly 31, 2018, the Concessionaireshall remove allnon-City equipment
used in connectionwith its .operation of the ConcessionStand unless non-
removalis approvedby the City. If?ie,-Concessionairedoes.notremoveall non-
City equipmentby July 31, 2018, Concessionaireshall pay a monthly fee of
Fifty Dollars($50.00)for eachmonththe non-city:equipmentis stored.» This fee
is payabl'e.to'the City within?fteen-days of the -Concessionairereceiving an
invoice?'om the City. . '


Employee/RepresentativeConduct. The Concessionaireshall assume full
responsibility and liability for the acts,‘ omissions, and. conduct of the
employees/representativesoperatingthe Concession Stand, and shall take such
disciplinary-measuresas may be necessary to controlsuchbehavior.


' Modi?cations.Concessionaireshall not modify any structure or system, or make
improvementsto the ConcessionStandwithoutthewrittenapprovalof the City.
Approvedmodi?cationsand improvementswill be made by the City and at the


-' soleexpense of the Concessionaire.
O


l’rohibitedDevices.Open ?ames or compressedgas fuel arenot authorizedin or


aroundthe ConcessionStandunless pre-approvedby the City.


Securig and Safety. ConcessionaireshallmaintainConcessionStandsecurity by
- rlockingdoors,grates, counters, and turning off stoves, lights, and other devices


whennot in use.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 30 of 103







7. City Actions.The City will facilitatethe Concessionaire’soperationof the Concession
Stand-asfollows:


A. Access to the ConcessionStand.The City shallprovidethe.Con_cessionairewith
keys (six (6) SPC Door Keys and Two (2) #71 Rool Door Keys) to the
Concession-Stand once the ConcessionStand agreement is signed by all parties.
The Concessionaireshall return the keys to the Communicationsand_Marketing
Department upon the expirationand/or termination of this Agreement. The
Concessionaireshall not duplicateor transfer the keys, and shall not give the
keys to any persons other than the employees/representativesauthorizedto
operate the Concession Stand. No rnorevthanthree adults are allowedaccess
upstairsin the Concession Stand to operate the scoreboardand PA system. No
one under the age of twelve years -is permitted to volunteerinside the
Concessionstand,and_mu_sthave adultsupervisionat all times.


The City shall supplyall electrical,water,andsewerservicenecessary
to the ConcessionStand, includingthe restrooms.


ConcessionStandMaintenance.The City shallbe responsiblefor keeping the
exteriorareas of the ConcessionStandin clean,orderly, andsanitarycondition.
City will supply garbage can with casters/wheels. Concessionaire will be
responsibleto transport garbagedailyto dumpster,.rentedby LittleLeague. This
includesall garbage and empty boxes.Dumpster to be placed in parking stall
located in the north end of parking lot closestto NorthCreekDrive. Little
League shall supplylock andkeep dumpsterlockeddailyandwhennot in use.


City ?uipment. The City shall furnish the Concessionairewith the following
equipmentfor the Concessionaire’soperationof the ConcessionStand:?xtures,
sink, and?counter top.- The Concessionaire,pursuant to paragraph6.1,shall be
responsiblefor keeping the forgoing in good working order and in clean and
sanitary conditionduring the term of this Agreement. '


Concessionaire’sEquipment and Inventogy.The City shall not be responsible
for any damages to or loss of any of the Concessionaire’sequipment or
inventory.


8. Indemnity. The Concessionaireshall indemnify and hold harmless the City and its
elected of?cials, employees, and agents from all claims,costs, liabilities,damages, and
penalties of whatever nature arising ?'om any act, omission, or breach of this
Agreement by the Concessionaire.The provisions of this paragraph shall survive the


~ n expirationorterminationof this Agreement. -


9. Termination.The City may terminatethisAgreement immediatelyfor any publichealth
or safety reason, or on ?ve (5) days’ notice for any _other reason, whether with or
withoutcause.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 31 of 103







10.


12.


’ 14.


15.


No InterestinPropegty.The licensegranted by paragraph 1 of this Agreement shall be
construedas a revocablepersonalprivilegeextendedto the Concessionaire;and shall
not be construed as grantingthe Concessionaireany interestin the ConcessionStandor
any realproperty ownedby the‘City. «


' -


Headings. The Headings used'inthis Agreement are forconvenienceand reference only
and do not form a parthereofand-do not ‘modify,interpret,or construe an understanding
of the City or the Concessionaire.


Governing‘Laws. ThisAgreement shallbe deemedto have been executed,deliveredand
accepted in the State of 'Washingtonand shall be construed pursuant to and in
accordancewith the laws of the.‘-State.of ‘Washington. Venue for any action arising
underthis Agreementshallbe in-SnohomishCounty SuperiorCourt.


Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodiesthe entire agreement and understanding


‘between the- City and the Concessionaireand there are no other agreements,


representations,warrantiesor understandings,oral-orwritten,between.the City and the
Concessionairewith respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. No alteration,
modi?cation, amendment-'or change of this Agreementshallbe validunless by like
instrument. '


'


Waiver. No waiver by eitherthe City or the Concessionaire.ofany breachof any term,


covenant or condition-hereofshallbe deemeda waiver of the sameor anysubsequent
-bre‘acl_1‘ofthe’same or any other term, covenant or.condition. No covenant, term or


condition of this Agreement shall - be deemed waived by 'either the City or


Concessionaireunlesswaivedin a writing signedby that Party.


Notice.-Any notice providedfor herein-orgiven pursuant to this Agreementshallbe in
writingandservedon the City andtheConcessionaireat the following.address:


City: City ofMillCreek
15728MainStreet
MillCreek,Washington98012
BrianDavern, Recreation& TourismManager


MillCreekLittle League
PQ'Box12445
MillCreek,WA 98082
Robert.~A]len,President


Concessionaire:


Any notices shall be either (i) personally.delive‘redto. the address set forth above, in
which case it shallbe deemeddeliveredon the date of delivery to said address; or (ii)


sent ‘by registeredor certi?ed mail, return requested; or (iii) sent by a nationally
‘ recognized‘overnightcourier.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 32 of 103







16.


17.


18.


19.


Hazard. The City may immediately stop Coneessionaire operations and correct any


hazardouscondition as the City deems necessary in its sole discretion.


City Signatories. The signatories for the City to this Agreement are signing in their


corporate and representative capacities,and shall not be personallyor individually liable


for the perfonnance thereof.


Assignment and Binding Effect. This Agreement shall insure to the benefit of and shall
be binding upon the City and the Concessionaire, and their successors and assigns.


provided,however.that no assignment by the Coneessionaire shall be valid without the
prior written consent of the City. There are no third party bene?ciaries to this


Agreement.


Severabilitv. Should any part. section. or clause of this Agreement be held


unenforceable or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction. the remainder of this
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.


IN WITNESS WHEREOI-'.the undersigned parties have caused the Agreement to be


duly executed.


CITY OF MlLL CREEK


Rebeeca C. Polizzotto.J.D.
@


City Manager


DATED this Q5 day of February, 2018.


MILL CREEK LITTLE LEAGUE


%L:
Robert Allen
President


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates (Joni Kirk, Directo... Page 33 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 34 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 35 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 36 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 37 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 38 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 39 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 40 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 41 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 42 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 43 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 44 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 45 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 46 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 47 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 48 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 49 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 50 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 51 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 52 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 53 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 54 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 55 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 56 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 57 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 58 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 59 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 60 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 61 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 62 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 63 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 64 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 65 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 66 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 67 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 68 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 69 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 70 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 71 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 72 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 73 of 103







A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #E.


C
om


m
unity Funding U


pdate (Bob Stow
e, Interim


 C
ity M


anager)
Page 74 of 103







A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #E.


C
om


m
unity Funding U


pdate (Bob Stow
e, Interim


 C
ity M


anager)
Page 75 of 103







A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #E.


C
om


m
unity Funding U


pdate (Bob Stow
e, Interim


 C
ity M


anager)
Page 76 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 77 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 78 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 79 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 80 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 81 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 82 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 83 of 103







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Community Funding Update (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager) Page 84 of 103







November 6, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


MINUTES
City Council Regular Meeting
6:00 PM - Tuesday, November 6, 2018
Council Chambers, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012
 


 


Minutes are the official record of Mill Creek City Council meetings. Minutes document 
action taken at the council meeting, not what was said at the council meeting.


A recording of this City Council meeting can be found here. 
The agenda packet for this City Council meeting can be found here.


CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Pruitt called the meeting of the Mill Creek City Council to order at 6:00 p.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance.


PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE


ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present:
Pam Pruitt, Mayor
Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem
Vince Cavaleri, Councilmember
Mike Todd, Councilmember
Mark Bond, Councilmember
Jared Mead, Councilmember
John Steckler, Councilmember


Councilmembers Absent:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda. 


 
Didrik Voss, a Mill Creek resident, asked Council to establish a surface water study 
group to look at public and private surface water systems, and would like the City to 
take over maintenance responsibilities for the ponds in MCCA. 
 
Barbara Heidel, a Mill Creek resident, asked Council to consider seniors in the budget 
process and read a letter that was given to the City Clerk to be entered into record. 


PUBLIC HEARING
B. 2019-2020 Preliminary and Proposed Biennial Budget 


 
Mayor Pruitt opened the public hearing at 6:07 p.m. 
 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe gave Council an overview of the preliminary budget 
and stressed the importance of the upcoming budget decisions and explained how the 
budget represents some of the most important and impactful policy decisions Council 


AGENDA ITEM #F.


City Council Meeting Minutes of November 6, 2018 Page 85 of 103



https://www.cityofmillcreek.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_9100852/File/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/Audio%20Recordings/2018/Audio%2011-6-18.mp3

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/26420

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/27665/11-6-18%20Barbara%20Heidel%20Letter%20to%20Council.pdf





November 6, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


can make. City Manager Stowe led Council through a PowerPoint presentation 
highlighting revenues, expenses, staffing levels and the budget schedule.  
 
Mayor Pruitt opened the public comment portion of the hearing. There were no 
comments from the audience. 
 
Council engaged in discussion. 
 
Mayor Pruitt closed the public hearing at 6:31 p.m. 


OLD BUSINESS
C. Adoption of Ordinance Updating the City of Mill Creek Traffic Mitigation Fee Program


Director of Public Works and Development Gina Hortillosa gave Council a brief 
overview of the proposed fee and explained that the proposed Ordinance is in 
congruence as presented with what was presented at the study session held during 
the last Council meeting as well as the adopted Traffic Improvement Plan (TIP). 


Councilmember Steckler made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2018-838, AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON REVISING THE 
TRAFFIC MITIGATION PROGRAM USED FOR ASSESSING TRAFFIC MITIGATION 
FEES; ADOPTING NEW TRAFFIC MITIGATION FEE ASSESSMENTS; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Councilmember Bond seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


STUDY SESSION
D. Agreement with Executive Search Firm for City Manager Recruitment 


Interim City Manager Bob Stowe reviewed the previously discussed City Manager 
recruitment process and subsequent Request for Proposal (RFP). City Manager 
Stowe stated that he sent the RFP to eleven executive search firms and five of those 
firms responded. City Manager Stowe provided Council with a draft scoring sheet 
based on criteria in the RFP, answers from firms, and personal knowledge of the 
firms.
 
Council engaged in discussion and determined more time would be needed to select a 
firm. City Manager Stowe suggested a committee be formed to further look at the 
RFP's and contact additional references. The newly comprised committee will consist 
of City Manager Stowe, Mayor Pruitt, Councilmember Todd and Councilmember 
Steckler; they will report back to Council at the November 13 City Council meeting. 


E. Surface Water Rates 


Director of Public Works & Development Services Gina Hortillosa provided context of 
the upcoming FCS Group presentation and explained that the prepared complex 
model has 3 major components; assumptions, revenues, and expenditures. Director 
Hortillosa reviewed elements of the proposed rate increase necessary to to address 
the aging surface water infrastructure.
 


AGENDA ITEM #F.


City Council Meeting Minutes of November 6, 2018 Page 86 of 103



https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/26502/11-6-18%20Preliminary%20Budget%20Presentation.pdf

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/26501/11-6-18%20Memo%20-%20Exec%20Search%20Firm%20RFP.pdf





November 6, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


Sergey Tarasov & John Ghilarducci with FCS Group walked Council through a 
Surface Water Rate Study PowerPoint presentation that detailed City surface water 
goals, current state, rate history, revenue requirements, the rate setting process, fiscal 
policies, assumptions, alternatives, key components, funding, and next steps. 


REPORTS
F. Mayor/Council


 
Councilmember Steckler reported that he enjoyed his first experience at Treats on 
Main and Trunk-or-Treat.
 
Councilmember Steckler reported that the Mill Creek Kiwanis club teamed up with 
students from Jackson High School and City maintenance crews to work on 
landscaping surrounding the Veterans Monument in preparation for the Veterans Day 
Commemorative Ceremony. 
 
Councilmember Steckler reported that the Shred-It event was a success and thanked 
the community and businesses that helped put it together. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw asked Director of Public Works & Development Services 
Gina Hortillosa to find out if the State plans on replacing the reflective road markings 
on 132nd/128th as it's difficult to see lane markings at night while it's raining.


G. City Manager
 Council Planning Schedule 


 
Interim City Manager Bob Stow reminded Council to RSVP for the Veterans Day 
events by Thursday, November 8. 
 


H. Staff
 Design Review Board Meeting Minutes of August 16, 2018
 Art & Beautification Board Meeting Minutes of September 12, 2018


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
I. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda. 


Greg Chandra, a Mill Creek resident, asked Council to prioritize economic 
revitalization over residential units.


ADJOURNMENT
With no objection, Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 8:10 p.m.


Pam Pruitt, Mayor


AGENDA ITEM #F.


City Council Meeting Minutes of November 6, 2018 Page 87 of 103







November 6, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


Gina Pfister, Acting City Clerk


AGENDA ITEM #F.


City Council Meeting Minutes of November 6, 2018 Page 88 of 103







November 13, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


MINUTES
City Council Regular Meeting
6:00 PM - Tuesday, November 13, 2018
Council Chambers, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012
 


 


Minutes are the official record of Mill Creek City Council meetings. Minutes document 
action taken at the council meeting, not what was said at the council meeting.


A recording of this City Council meeting can be found here. 
The agenda packet for this City Council meeting can be found here.


CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Pruitt called the meeting of the Mill Creek City Council to order at 6:00 p.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance.


PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE


ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present:
Pam Pruitt, Mayor
Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem
Vince Cavaleri, Councilmember
Mike Todd, Councilmember
Mark Bond, Councilmember
John Steckler, Councilmember


Councilmembers Absent:
Jared Mead, Councilmember
 
 
 
 
 


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw made a motion to excuse Councilmember Mead due to 
vacation. Councilmember Cavaleri seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda. 


Wil Nelson, a Mill Creek resident, expressed his dissatisfaction of the proposed 
complex in the EGUV district. 


PRESENTATIONS
B. Grant Funding Presentation: Historical Preservation Panels 


Snohomish County Councilmember Terry Ryan presented the Council with a symbolic 
check for $12,500 from the Snohomish County Council to help fund the Historic 
Preservation Panel Project. Councilmember Ryan thanked Interim City Manager 
Stowe for being proactive and responsive and announced that a park project grant is 
in the County's 2019 budget that will be voted on within the next couple weeks. 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


City Council Meeting Minutes of November 13, 2018 Page 89 of 103



https://www.cityofmillcreek.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_9100852/File/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/Audio%20Recordings/2018/Audio%2011-13-18.mp3

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/26553





November 13, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


PUBLIC HEARING
C. 2019-2020 Preliminary and Proposed Biennial Budget and Property Tax Levies


 
Mayor Pruitt opened the public hearing at 6:08 p.m. 
 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe explained that the budget document reflects and 
carries out the City's Guiding Principles and is different than past budgets, 
representing a robust financial planning tool. City Manager Stowe presented a 
slideshow highlighting the budget schedule and public hearing schedule, including 
those for EMS and property tax levies. City Manager Stowe reviewed the revenue 
summary, general fund expense summary, expenses by department, and reviewed 
the 6 year financial forecast with a 1% property tax increase vs. no increase. 
 
Mayor Pruitt opened the public comment portion of the public hearing. There were no 
comments from the audience. 
 
Council engaged in discussion. Director of Finance & Administration Peggy Lauerman 
answered questions relating to the General Fund financial forecast scenarios. Council 
requested additional forecast chart scenarios at the next scheduled study session. 
 
Mayor Pruitt closed the public hearing at 6:30 p.m. 


D. Surface Water Utility Rate


Mayor Pruitt opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m. 
 
Director of Public Works & Development Services Gina Hortillosa summarized the 
scope of services provided by FCS Group and reviewed the surface water 
infrastructure assessment and additional debt caused by the Sweetwater Ranch 
sinkhole. Director Hortillosa explained the service level matrix and detailed the three 
level of service alternatives for City consideration: baseline, do nothing; large pipe 
repair; all pipe repair. Director Hortillosa reviewed the proposed service package, 
outcomes, and funding detail reflective of the City's inflation assumptions. 
 
Council engaged in discussion. John Ghilarducci and Melanie Hobart with FCS Group 
were present and answered questions from Council. 
 
Mayor Pruitt opened the public comment portion of the meeting. 
 
Wil Nelson, a Mill Creek resident, expressed concern that an increase may hurt 
families, and hopes a future Council revisits surface water issues before they get out 
of hand again.
 
Didrik Voss, a Mill Creek resident, addressed Council in favor of raising rates. Mr. 
Voss asked Council to share in the MCCA detention pond maintenance 
responsibilities and would like the City to hire a surface water engineer and ask the 
County for additional help. Mr. Voss asked Council to create a surface water study 
group comprised of members representing HOA's and City staff. 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


City Council Meeting Minutes of November 13, 2018 Page 90 of 103



https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/27700/11-13-18%20Budget%20Presentation.pdf





November 13, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


 
Mayor Pruitt closed the public hearing at 7:17 p.m.


OLD BUSINESS
E. Executive Search Firm Selection 


Interim City Manager Bob Stowe asked Council to postpone this item to give the newly 
formed council committee an opportunity to review and evaluate search firm 
references and make a recommendation. Council agreed. 


NEW BUSINESS
F. Successor Interlocal Agreement with the City of Edmonds for the Purpose of 


Receiving Domestic Violence Coordinator Services 
 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe briefed Council on the current interlocal agreement 
(ILA) for domestic violence coordinator (DVC) services and advised Council that the 
City of Edmonds has notified the City of their intent to terminate the ILA due to 
increase workload requirements. Termination will only occur once Mill Creek has a 
suitable arrangement in place. City Manager Stowe advised Council that staff is 
actively looking for another service provide. 


Councilmember Todd made a motion to authorize the City manager to execute 
the successor Interlocal Agreement between the City of Mill Creek and the City 
of Edmonds for Domestic Violence Coordinator (DVC) services. Councilmember 
Steckler seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


RECESS TO BREAK
G. At 7:20 p.m. Council recessed for a five minute break


RECONVENE TO REGULAR SESSION
H. At 7:25 p.m. Council reconvened to regular session


STUDY SESSION
I. Preliminary and Proposed 2019-2020 Biennial Budget


 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe facilitated a study session focused on elements of 
the budget including Capital Funds, Enterprise Funds, Special Revenue, Debt Service 
Funds, and Proprietary Funds. Director of Public Works & Development Services Gina 
Hortillosa gave an overview of her department's budget; and City Manager Stowe 
reviewed the Legislative and Executive department's budgets. Information regarding 
new positions proposed but not included in the budget was also presented. Director of 
Finance & Administration Peggy Lauerman reviewed special revenue funds.


J. Mill Creek Sports Park Proposed Rate Increase 


Director of Communications & Marketing Joni Kirk briefed Council on the upcoming 
sports park turf and light replacement project. Director Kirk reviewed proposed hourly 
rate increases, impact to user groups, and revenue projections. Council engaged in 
discussion. 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


City Council Meeting Minutes of November 13, 2018 Page 91 of 103



https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/27701/11-13-18%20Proposed%20Positions%20Eliminated.pdf





November 13, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


At 8:34 p.m. Councilmember Todd made a motion to extend the meeting up to 
9:00 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  


CONSENT AGENDA
K. Approval of Checks #59273 through #59408 and ACH Wire Transfers in the Amount 


of $972,506.95
(Audit Committee: Mayor Pruitt and Councilmember Todd)


L. Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $279,513.66
(Audit Committee: Mayor Pruitt and Councilmember Todd)


Councilmember Todd made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Mayor Pro 
Tem Holtzclaw seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  


REPORTS
M. Mayor/Council


Councilmember Bond reported that he toured the senior center and would like to 
discuss the parking situation and possible funding increase at an upcoming meeting. 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe will incorporate additional senior center funding into 
the next budget discussion. 
 
Councilmember Todd reported that SCC will be having a legislative priorities 
brainstorming session at their next meeting and encouraged Council to attend. 
Councilmember Todd provided EASC's and AWC's legislative priorities to Council. 
 
Councilmember Todd encouraged Council and the community to provide comments 
regarding the proposed ST3 station locations through their online survey before 
November 30.
 
Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw thanked staff for their hard work on the Veterans Day 
events. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw asked that people read The Farm materials online and give 
the developer an opportunity to present the proposal before negative comments are 
made.


N. City Manager
 Council Planning Schedule 


O. Staff
 Park & Recreation Board meeting minutes of October 3, 2018


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
P. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda


Carmen Fisher, a Mill Creek resident, expressed her interest in the police department 
budget and would like the City to continue investing in the department. Ms. Fisher 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


City Council Meeting Minutes of November 13, 2018 Page 92 of 103



https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/27703/11-13-18%20EASC%20Leg%20Priorities%20-%20Mike%20Todd%20Report.pdf

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/27702/11-13-18%20AWC%20Leg%20Priorities%20-%20Mike%20Todd%20Report.pdf





November 13, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


would like Council to consider programming of some kind for Martin Luther King Jr. 
Day and Black History Month. 


RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION
(Confidential session of the Council) 


Q. At 8:52 p.m. the Council recessed to executive session to discuss the performance of 
a public employee pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)
 
The executive session ended at 8:59 p.m. No action was taken. 


RECONVENE TO REGULAR SESSION
R. At 9:00 p.m. the meeting reconvened to regular session 


ADJOURNMENT
With no objection, Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 9:00 p.m.


Pam Pruitt, Mayor


Gina Pfister, Acting City Clerk


AGENDA ITEM #G.


City Council Meeting Minutes of November 13, 2018 Page 93 of 103







 


Tentative Council Meeting Agendas 
Subject to change without notice 


Last updated: February 28, 2019 
 


 


March 12, 2019 – Special Meeting (5:00 p.m.) 


(Executive Session) 


 Review of City Manager Candidate 


Applications 


 


 


March 12, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due March 4) 


 Presentation: Waste Management  


 Presentation: Northshore Senior Center 


 Approval of Surface Water Bond 


Reimbursement Resolution 


 SVR Contract Amendment 


 Study Session: The Farm Development 


Agreement 


 Study Session: Financial Policies  


 Report: Procurement Procedures Manual 


 Report: Quarterly Financial Report  


 


 


March 22, 2019 


 City Manager Finalists – Community & Staff 


Engagement 


 


 


March 23, 2019 


 City Manager Finalists – Council Interviews 


 


 


March 26, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due March 18) 


 Public Hearing: The Farm  


 Park & Recreation Board Appointment 


 Purchase of PW Bucket Truck  


 Report: Grand Reopening Plan for Mill Creek 


Sports Park 


 


 


April 2, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due March 25) 


 Study Session: Compensation Strategies 


 Study Session: Dobson/Remillard Property 


 Contract for Services – DV Services 


 Report: Winter Storm Update 


 


 


April 9, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due April 1) 


 Contract for Services – Mill Creek Blvd 


Corridor Study  


 


 


 


 


MARCH 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


          1  2  


       


3  4  5  6  7  8  9  


       


10  11  12  13  14  15  16  


       


17  18  19  20  21  22  23  


       


24 31 25  26  27  28  29  30  


       


APRIL 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


  1  2  3  4  5  6  


       


7  8  9  10  11  12  13  


       


14  15  16  17  18  19  20  


       


21  22  23  24  25  26  27  


       


28  29  30          


       


MAY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


      1  2  3  4  


       


5  6  7  8  9  10  11  


       


12  13  14  15  16  17  18  


       


19  20  21  22  23  24  25  


       


26  27  28  29  30  31    


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Council Liaison Positions Page 94 of 103







  


 


 


April 23, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due April 10) 


 Report: Memorial Day Plans 


 Surface Water F Failures – Construction 


Contract Award  


 


 


May 7, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due April 29) 


 Proclamation: Public Works Month  


 


 


May 14, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due May 6) 


 Check Presentation to City’s AWC Scholarship 


Nominee 


 


 


May 28, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due May 20) 


 


 


June 4, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due May 27) 


 Youth Advisory Board Year-End Recognition 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Possible Work Session Topics for Discussion 


 Business signs  


 MCCA storm water discussions  


 Utility Project Management  


 Hotel/Motel Theater Tax  


 Mill Creek Blvd Vision  


 ST3 Stations 


 Hawk/SR 96 – Consideration of Speed 


 5G Presentation 


 Legislative Retreat 


 Gold Star Memorial 


 Dobson Remillard Property 


 Fleet Program 


 Public Works Month Proclamation 


 Bike Lanes 


 HAWK Signal Update 


JUNE 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


            1  


       


2  3  4  5  6  7  8  


       


9  10  11  12  13  14  15  


       


16  17  18  19  20  21  22  


       


23 30 24  25  26  27  28  29  


       


JULY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


  1  2  3  4  5  6  


       


7  8  9  10  11  12  13  


       


14  15  16  17  18  19  20  


       


21  22  23  24  25  26  27  


       


28  29  30  31        


       


AUGUST 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


        1  2  3  


       


4  5  6  7  8  9  10  


       


11  12  13  14  15  16  17  


       


18  19  20  21  22  23  24  


       


25  26  27  28  29  30  31  


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Council Liaison Positions Page 95 of 103







j \


lVlill(/I./fejek
WASHINGTON


CITY OF MILL CREEK
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD MEETING MINUTES


December 20, 2018


Approved February 21, 2019
DRB Members:


Dave Gunter, Chair
David Hambelton, Vice Chair
Tina Hastings
Diane Symms (absent)
Beverly Tiedje


Community Development Staff:
Sherrie Ringstad, Associate Planner
Christi Amrine, Senior Planner


I. CALL TO ORDER:


Chair Gunter called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m.


II. ROLL CALL:


All members were present as noted above except Member Syinms, whose absence is
excused.


III. MINUTES:


A. Minutes of November 15. 2018


MOTION: Vice Chair Hambelton moved, seconded by Member Hastings, to approve the


November 15, 2018 minutes as presented. The motion was approved
unanimously.


IV. NEW BUSINESS:


PL20l8—O023Cubes Self Storagze Facility


Associate Planner Sherrie Ringstad presented the staff PowerPoint, which included
background information, a project description, vicinity photos, and a review of the


approved site plan. She noted that the presentation would focus on the individual elements


(building elevations, landscaping and signage), reviewing the applicable Design Criteria


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Staff Design Review Board Meeting Minutes of December 20, 2018 Planning ... Page 96 of 103







Design Review Board Meeting Minutes
December20, 2018
Page 2


andthe.proposal, before turning the discussion over to the Board for questions, further
d1SC1.1SSl0Iland a motion.


BuildingElevations
Ms. Ringstad reviewedthe design criteria applicable to building elevations. She described
the proposed materials and highlights of the individual elevations. She noted that wall
signage is reviewed administratively and is shown for conceptual purposes only. Vice
Chair Hambelton asked for clari?cation on the windows and the colored storage doors
behind the windows? The Architect,Dirk McCulloch, con?rmed that the storage doors do
show through the windows — they are setback about 30 inches from the windows.
Ms. Ringstad stated that there is a perspective rendering later in the presentation that gives
a better idea of what it would look like. Vice Chair Hambelton asked if the windows would
be re?ective glass. Mr. McCulloch con?rmed that they will be clear vision glass.


Chair Gunter asked if the trees shown on the southern elevation are existing or proposed.
Mr. McCulloch con?rmed that the trees are existing on The Learning Experience property


— they used Google Earth to extrapolate their location and mass.


Ms. Ringstad concluded the staff presentation by stating that staff ?nds the proposed
elevations to be consistent with the Design Guidelines and is recommending approval and
turned the discussion over to Chair.


Member Tiedje stated that she likes the proposal. Chair Gunter said that the applicanthas
done a good job of providing modulation. Member Hambelton said that he especially
appreciatesthe perspectives showing the development next door and the 3-D renderings.


Member Hastings asked aboutthe north and south elevations and the fact that the section
of wall west of the bay element appears to be longer than 50 feet. Ms. Ringstad con?rmed
that the westernmost section is a little longer than 50 feet, but the applicant
suggested/requested that the bay element be located a little closerto SR 527 for aesthetic
reasons. Staff concurred with the request, while not a strict adherence to the Code, it does
create a more attractiveview from the SR 527.


4


Member Hastings suggested that a comment be added to the record clarifying that the bay
elements were located closer to SR 527, which made the westernmost section of wall
slightly longer than 50 feet without a break in modulation, based on site speci?c reasons.


MOTION: ViceChair Hambelton moved, seconded by Member Hastings, to approve the
proposed building elevations, colors, and materials for the Cubes Self-Storage
project with the following clari?cation:


0 The north and south elevations are approved with the bay elements
located closer to SR 527 for aesthetic and visibility reasons, rather than
placing them in the middle of the elevation to create evenly spaced
modulation. The DRB wanted to make it clear that there were site
specific reasons for allowing this exception to the 50-foot facade


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Staff Design Review Board Meeting Minutes of December 20, 2018 Planning ... Page 97 of 103







DesignReview Board Meeting Minutes
December 20, 2018
Page 3


modulationrequirement, and to make it clear that they were not
mtendmg to set a precedence


The motion was approved unanimously.


Landscaping


Ms. Ringstad reviewed the design criteria applicableto landscapingand gave an overview
of the proposed landscapeplan. She noted that a combination of native and native-adapted
plants as well as a few ornamental plants are proposed. In addition, the plant species
proposed are hardy, low maintenanceand drought tolerant once established. Ms. Ringstad
stated that the evergreen trees proposed on the southern and northern property boundary as
well as in the roadway buffer are Serbian Spruce, the street trees are Paperbark Maple,
which are on the City’s approved street tree list. She noted that the plants proposed in ?'ont
are more of the native-adapted and ornamental while the plants proposed around the
perimeter of the parking lot in back are more native, which works well with the adjacent
NGPA. The parking lot trees proposed in back are Bowhall Maple, which are also on the
City’s approved street tree list.


Ms. Ringstad stated that she is seeking the Board’s input on the following issues:


She noted that the walkway show adjacent to the southernmostexterior access storage units
on the western elevation is shown as ?ve-feet wide. Ms. Ringstad suggestedthat the Board
discuss the option of allowing the sidewalk to be increased in width to approximatelyseven


feet, which would requirethe adjacent landscapebed to be reduced to ?ve feet, eliminating
the row of groundcover. This would give the applicant?exibility if it is needed to provide
adequate room to access those storage units. The DRB brie?y discussed the suggestion
and concurredthat it would be acceptable if it is necessary to provide adequate access.


Ms. Ringstad stated that the Code requires 90 percent coverage within three years of


planting. She noted that the plant schedule shows the groundcover at 30 inches on center


and said that there is a concern that this spacing will not achieve the required 90 percent


coverage. After discussing the issue, it was the consensus of the Board that the
groundcoverspacing should be set at 24 inches on center.


Finally, Ms. Ringstad noted that Kinnikinnickis proposedalong the northern and southern
elevations. Both of these areas will be shady because of the adjacent uses and there is a


concern that the Kinnikinnick will not do well in this shady location. She asked if the
Boardhad a suggestion of an alternate plant for these elevations. Ms. Ringstad stated that


the TLE property to the south is plannedto be plantedwith Oregon Grape and Barberry.


The applicant, David Pruin, stated that his landscape architect feels the Kinnikinnick does


well in the shade but they are open to another shrub choice. After discussing the issue the
DRB suggested the Kinnikinnick along these two elevations be changed to Oregon Grape.


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Staff Design Review Board Meeting Minutes of December 20, 2018 Planning ... Page 98 of 103







DesignReview Board Meeting Minutes
December20, 2018
Page 4


Ms. Ringstad concluded the staff presentation by stating that staff ?nds the proposed
landscapeplan to be consistent with the Design Guidelines and is recommending approval
and turned the discussion over to Chair.


Chair Gunter summarized the Board’s suggestions as well as the conditions listed in the
staff report and called for a motion.


MOTION: Vice Chair Hambelton moved, seconded by Member Tiedje, to approve the
proposed landscape plan for the Cubes Self-Storage project as conditioned in
the staff report, with the additional conditions as follows:


0 The walkway shown on the west elevation adjacent to the exterior
access storage units on the southwest corner of the building may be
increased to seven feet in width, if necessary to provide adequate access
to these storage units, and the adjacent landscape bed may be reduced
to five feet, with the row of groundcover eliminated.


0 The landscape bed adjacent to the building on the north and south
elevations shall be planted with Mahonia aquifolium instead of
Kinnikinnick. .


0 The spacing on the groundcover shall be 24 inches on-center to meet


the 90 percent coverage requirement.
‘ The motion was approved unanimously.


Monument Sign


Ms. Ringstad reviewed the design criteria applicableto freestanding signs. She stated that
the Code allows 34 square feet with a maximum height of 42 inches. The proposed sign
meets the dimensional requirements outlined in the Code. The sign should also be
complementary to the proposed building in color, scale, etc. and located no closer than 5


feet to right-of-way. Ms. Ringstad noted that the sign is proposed to be internally


illuminatedand as required by Code has been designed to illuminate only the text and the
logo — the sign background will not be illuminated.


Staff respondedto a couple of Boardquestionsand the DRB brie?y discussed the proposed
monument sign.


MOTION: Vice ChairHambelton moved, seconded by Member Hastings, to approve the


proposed monument sign for the Cubes Self-Storage project as conditioned in


the staff report. The motion was approved unanimously.


Chair Gunter complimented the applicanton the excellent submittal package.


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Staff Design Review Board Meeting Minutes of December 20, 2018 Planning ... Page 99 of 103







Design Review Board Meeting Minutes
December 20, 2018
Page 5


V. ADJOURNMENT:


Chair Gunter adjourned the meeting with the consensus of the Board at 6:10 p.m.


um} e y:
‘


Sherrie Ringslad, Associate Planner


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Staff Design Review Board Meeting Minutes of December 20, 2018 Planning ... Page 100 of 103







CITY OF MILL CREEK
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES


January 17, 2019
Approved February 21, 2019


I. CALL TO ORDER:


Chair Eisner called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.


II. ROLL CALL:


Chair Stan Eisner Staff:
Vice Chair Matthew Nolan Tom Rogers, Planning & Dev. Services Manager
Commissioner Steven Maloney Sherrie Ringstad, Associate Planner
Commissioner Brian Hyatt
Commissioner Daniel Mills
Commissioner Jennifer Parker (absent)
Commissioner Dennis Teschlog


III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES


Planning Commission Meeting of November 15, 2018


MOTION: Vice Chair Nolan moved, seconded by Commissioner Mills, to approve the
November 15, 2018 minutes as presented. The motion was approved unanimously.


IV. WORK SESSION


Small Cell Wireless Facilities — Potential Code Amendments
Associate Planner Sherrie Ringstad noted that the agenda item before the Commission is a
continuation of the discussion on the small cell wireless facilities. The staff presentation
included a brie?ng on the impacts of the FCC ruling, a review of the work program, and a
background on the purpose and features of small cell facilities. Several slides showing
photos of small cell facilities of various types and using different concealment technology
were reviewed and discussed by the Commission.


Photos of the different types of light poles in the City were displayed, including the specialty
poles owned by the City in the Town Center, on Main Street, and in the North Pointe
neighborhood; the concrete aggregate poles in the MCCA area; and poles in areas that were
annexed following development under Snohomish County regulations; as well as newer
aluminum poles in more recently developed subdivisions. Ms. Ringstad noted that, with the
exception of the wooden poles, most of these light poles could not structurally accommodate
small cell facilities and would need to be replaced.


The staff presentation also included slides showing potential pole designs provided by the
PUD. These designs were for a more decorative pole, hollow to allow cables and wires to be
concealed internally, with a large base that could accommodate the equipment box and the
antenna on top of the decorative light. These lights, or something similar, might be
acceptable for a standard pole to replace the decorative poles owned by the City.


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Staff Design Review Board Meeting Minutes of December 20, 2018 Planning ... Page 101 of 103







PlarmingCommission Minutes
January 17,2019
Page 2


The presentationconcluded with a review of the areas the new code will address,including
establishinga process, adopting aesthetic standards/approved poles, application requirements
and a process to address minor modi?cations.


0


A Commission discussion ensued with several issues and questionsaddressed as follows:


Chair Eisner asked if the carrierswould be required to co-locate the small cell facilities to
reduce the number of new poles required? Staff con?rmed that each pole can only
accommodateone carrier; thus, co-location of the small cell facilities is not feasible.


In response to a question regarding whether the terrain or the carrier’s equipment has the
most impact on the service area for each facility (i.e., the 300 to 1,000 range), staff was
unable to provide a de?nitive answer but stated that it was likely to be a combination and
would differ depending on the individual carrier’s equipment.


CommissionMills asked if any other cities have selectedstandard poles yet. Ms. Ringstad
stated that the cities of Mountlake Terrace, Brier, Edmondsand Lynnwood have been
processingapplications, but stated that she is not aware if they have selected a standard pole.
Planningand Development Services Manager Torn Rogers added that these cities do have
more wooden poles than Mill Creek and may be less likely to need replacement poles.


Chair Eisner asked if ?ve or six carriers were installing small cell facilities, how many
facilities would the City anticipate. Commission Mills said that in his opinion, only three
carriersare likely to be installing the 5G facilities, T-Mobile, Verizon, and AT&T. He .


doesn’t think it is likely that the smaller carriers will be going to that expense.


Respondingto a questionregarding whenthe City might see installations, Mr. Rogers stated
probablywithina year or two, but we haven’t been approached by any carriers yet.


0


Ms. Ringstad added that staff will be meeting with the carriersprior to the next Commission
meeting and would probably have a better idea following that meeting. ’


CommissionerMills asked if trees will have any impact on the service area. Staff stated that
is likely and noted that the City Attorney Elana Zana may be able to answer that question at
the next meeting. '


Commissioner Teschlog asked about facilities located outside the public right-of—way.
Mr. Rogers said that they would still have to follow rules, they just wouldn’t need a
franchise agreement.


CommissionHyattsuggested that the City workwith the County to address standards in the
unincorporatedareas surrounding the City. Mr. Rogers said that staffhasn’t talked with
County staff yet, but agreed that it is a good idea.


Commissioner Teschlog suggested that staff also coordinate with the Mill Creek Community
Association (MCCA) on the standard for the light poles in the MCCA area. Mr. Rogers
concurred, saying that this will be an important issue for the community and it might be a


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Staff Design Review Board Meeting Minutes of December 20, 2018 Planning ... Page 102 of 103







Planning Commission Minutes
January 17,2019
Page 3


good idea to have a public workshop inviting the MCCA as well as other interested
groups/residents prior to the public hearing.


Vl. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER
Planning and Development Services Manager Rogers advised the Commission that the City
Council has appointed Mayor Pro Tem Brian I-Ioltzclawas a Council liaison to the Planning
Commission. The intent is not to have him participate but act as an observer and report back
to the City Council, as well as bringing Council direction/input back to the Planning
Commission. He noted that in the past the City Council and Planning Commission have held
joint meetings on an annual or semi—annualbasis and stated that staff will suggest a joint
meeting in the ?iture.


Mr. Rogers stated that staff is preparing to go out with an RFP for consultant services to


prepare the Mill Creek Boulevard Corridor subarea plan. The consultant would be working
with the Planning Commission on the subarea plan and with a stakeholder’s group that would
include property owners.


Planning and Development Services Manager Rogers also stated that the Code Enforcement
Code Amendments that were reviewed by the Planning Commission last November are
scheduled to be considered by the City Council on February 12, 2019.


VII. ADJOURNMENT


MOTION: Vice Chair Nolan moved, seconded by‘Commissioner Teschlog, to adjourn the
meeting at 7:50 p.m. The motion \vas approved unanimously.


Submitted by:


Sherrie Ringstad, Associate Planner


AGENDA ITEM #J.


Staff Design Review Board Meeting Minutes of December 20, 2018 Planning ... Page 103 of 103





		Agenda

		B. Adopt-A-Ship Program with the USS Ralph Johnson

		C. Surface Water Bond Financing Introduction

		D. Mill Creek Sports Park Concession Stand Rental Rates

		E. Community Funding Discussion

		F. Regular Council Meeting - 06 Nov 2018 - Minutes - Html

		G. Regular Council Meeting - 13 Nov 2018 - Minutes - Html

		I. Council Planning Schedule

		J. Design Review Board Meeting Minutes of December 20, 2018

		J. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of January 17, 2019




